Decisions effective from the 10<sup>th</sup> December 2019 unless they are called in or recommended to the Cabinet/Council for approval

# **Trading and Enterprise Board**

Minutes of a Meeting of the Trading and Enterprise Board held in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the **26**<sup>th</sup> **November 2019** 

#### **Present:**

Cllr. Bell (Chairman)

Cllrs. Clokie, Pickering, Shorter;

Cllr. N Ovenden (Observer).

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2(c) Councillor Clokie attended as Substitute Member for Councillor Gideon.

## **Apologies:**

Cllr. Gideon, Director of Finance and Economy (in his capacity as Section 151 Officer).

#### Also Present:

Cllrs. Burgess, B Heyes, Wedgbury.

Head of Finance and IT (in her Capacity as Director of A Better Choice for Property Ltd), Principal Solicitor (Property and Projects) (in her Capacity as Company Secretary for A Better Choice for Property Ltd and A Better Choice for Building Consultancy Ltd), Senior Accountant, Commercial Development Manager (A Better Choice for Property Ltd), Member Services Manager (Operational).

## 203 Declarations of Interest

| Councillor | Interest   | Minute No. |
|------------|--|------------|
| Shorter    | Made a Voluntary Announcement as he was a member of the Board of A Better Choice for Building Consultancy Ltd. | 206        |

## 204 Minutes

### Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Board held on the 8<sup>th</sup> July 2019 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

## 205 Share Purchase - A Better Choice for Property Ltd

The report requested an earlier purchase of the next tranche of shares in A Better Choice for Property Limited than previously approved. The previous approval allowed for £100,000 worth of shares to be purchased in the financial year 2020/21 and the Company would like the Council to bring this forward to the current financial year.

The Senior Accountant and Principal Solicitor (Property and Projects) answered Members questions on the request. It was explained that the first of the three approved drawdowns did not happen in the financial year that approval was given (2017/18). If it had, the funds would have already been released. In the event the first tranche of equity was released on 31<sup>st</sup> July 2018 (2018/19 financial year) and the second on 9<sup>th</sup> May 2019 (2019/20 financial year). Approval of this request would see the release of the final tranche also in 2019/20, rather than waiting until 1<sup>st</sup> April 2020. It was needed to help fund a short term cashflow shortfall without the need for additional borrowing or sale of property.

In response to a question the Principal Solicitor (Property and Projects) advised that the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary, with the Council as sole shareholder. The Company could take on other shareholders but these would need to be approved by the Council. There was no requirement in law for the Council to have more than one shareholder and the Company had no intention of asking the Council to approve such a request in the future.

## Recommended

That Cabinet approves the purchase of £100,000 worth of shares in the financial year 2019/20, instead of in the financial year 2020/21 as previously approved.

## 206 Closure of A Better Choice for Building Consultancy Limited

The Principal Solicitor (Property and Projects) introduced the report which explained that in 2017 it was decided that A Better Choice for Building Consultancy Limited should cease trading but remain in existence. The Directors of the Company had now taken the decision that the costs (both actual and in Officer time) of keeping the Company in existence were disproportionate and had resolved to ask the Council to close the Company and apply for it to be removed from the register of companies at Companies House.

A Member, who was also a Director of the Company, explained that there had been substantial learning points derived from the operation of this Company that would be useful going forward. It was also important to note that the Company did finish trading with money in the back so the whole exercise had been undertaken without any cost to the Council.

#### Recommended

- That (i) the Cabinet recommends to Council that A Better Choice for Building Consultancy is closed and the application made to Companies House to strike off the Company from the Register.
  - (ii) the Cabinet recommends to Council that authority is delegated to the Principal Solicitor (Property and Projects), who is also Company Secretary, to make the application and complete the necessary paperwork.

## 207 Exclusion of the Public

### Resolved:

That pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items, as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure of exempt information hereinafter specified by reference to Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, where in the circumstances the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

# 208 Financing of A Better Choice for Property Limited – Discussion Paper

The Company Director (Head of Finance and IT) introduced the report which explained that the Company had been set up to provide the Council with an income stream, replacing some of the income received from Government grants. The Company was looking to escalate a number of developments over the next year and wanted Members to consider future funding options for the Company which would enable its ambitious future development plans (as outlined in its agreed Business Plan) to be taken forward.

During the course of the discussion Officers answered a number of questions about potential funding options and more general comments on Ashford's development as a whole and the future direction of the Company.

The Commercial Development Manager advised that a full proposal for the former B&Q site would be coming to this Board at its next meeting in February.

The Board agreed that, based on the information currently available, they would prefer to look at the Council providing a short term loan facility rather than a significant share issue to provide further financing for the Company. The share issue may have potential, but the Board would like to see a business plan drawn up that clearly showed the financing requirement and when any future dividends would be expected to come through. The style of funding may also be dependent on the type of development that was proposed so there was an argument to look at each site in

CA/TEB 261119

its own right. As this report was purely a discussion paper Officers took those points on board and agreed to come back with further details at a later date.

#### Resolved:

That the report be received and noted and Officers consider the Board's comments before coming back with a future report on proposals for future financing of the Company.

# 209 Half-Yearly Management Update – A Better Choice for Property Limited

The Commercial Development Manager of the Company introduced the report which updated the Board on the Company's business activities over the six month period from 1<sup>st</sup> January to 30<sup>th</sup> June 2019. He said the report was intended as a general update providing an overall commentary on business, but he would be happy to take any questions at any time on the ground covered in the report.

Members thanked the Commercial Development Manager of the Company for the report and said they would like to see the report continue to come forward every six months to this Board.

## Resolved:

That the report be received and noted.

Queries concerning these minutes? Please contact Member Services

Telephone: (01233) 330349 E-mail <u>membersservices@ashford.gov.uk</u>
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.moderngov.co.uk